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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

TALLAHASSEE DIVISION
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA .
B INDICTMENT S
V. }P
U e
TYRONE D. PIPKIN L}' [ OQ%Y M/ '
/

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES:
| " COUNTONE

At all times relevant to this Indictment, unless otherwise stated:

L INIRODUCTION

1. The E-Rate program (“E~Ra€e”) was created by Congress in the -
Telecommunications Act of 1996, and operated under the auspice;s of the.FedezéIr
Commur.ziéaﬁbns Corhmissioﬁ (“FCC”) to provide funding to connect needy schools and | _
Hbraries to the Internet and piovide tel_ecormnunica‘iion éefviées. The FCC designated |
Universal Ser‘.r‘i.ces‘Admimstrative Company (“USAC”), a non-profit corporation, to
administer E-Rate. Substantial quantities Iof money were collected monthly from

‘ telecomrﬁunications customers across the country to fund the program.

Fil'adDBE’.ﬂi’iﬁgs}fJCFiﬂiﬁIiEB?



Case 4:10-cr-00067-SPM -WCS Document 1 Filed 08/24/10 Page 2 of 12

2. E-Rate was designed to ensure that the neediest schools receive the most
financial help. All participating schools were reqt.ﬂredrto fund a percentage of the cost of
the eQuipmeht and services acquired unde_r E-Rate [hereinafter referred to as “co-pay”].

_ The amount of the co-pay was based on the number of students in the séhool qualifying.
for the United States Departﬁzent of Agriculture’s school lunch program, with the
neediest schools being eligible for the highest percentage of funding. The ne‘ediesti.
schools were required to pay a co-pay of at least 10% for equipment and services acquired
- under the program.

3 During the relevant .period,-school appiications for E-Rate funding far
exceeded the funding available. The following USAC rules and procedures were in
piaée, among others, to ensufe that. the E-Rate .fﬁnding was 6istributed ‘to the widest
numbe; of qualifying applicgnts:

a.  only USAC;approved equipment, services, and supplies were
eligibie for funding; |

b. ;choois could seek fuﬁding only for projects for which the schools
had budgeted funds for their co-pay mﬁount and for fhe purchase of
end;user equipment and services necessary to utilize thé applied--
for equipment and services;

c. service providérs and their agents could not participate in the

vendor selection process and the completion of forms necesséu'y for
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the schools to receive E-Rate funding, so as to avoid a conflict of
interest and even the appearance of a conflict of interest; and
d. schools were required to follo.w local and stajté law competitive
bidding proé:gdures to ensure that the schools received the most
cost—-effective bids from the responsive bidc_iers.
4._ | Innovation School Of Excellence and Innovation Child Dev;alopment Center
| [hereinafter referred to as “Innovation Schools™] were pr:ivatelChristian schools located in
Tallahassee, Florida, which were owneq and Operated.by Innovation Baptist Church. |
During ﬂze.‘feievant périod, coconspirator A served as the grant adrﬁinistratér/ERate
_ .coordinator for Innofration Schools to administer, manage, and oversee its E«ﬁate pfoj ect.
All maﬁerg relating to E-Rate at Innovation Sghbols were delegatéd o coconspirator A,
including, but not limited to, filing all funding applications and related forms with IjSAC?,
making \{endor selection reconnnendaﬁons, respondi‘ng.to requests for documentation
from USAC, and overseeing ali E-Rate projects. Innovation Schools r-eceiveé more than
$IO,QOO in assistancelﬁcom the United States government in each'of the years of 2003,
2004, and 2005. . -
5, - TYRONE D. PIPKIN co-owned Global Networking Téchnologies, Inc.
'(“GNT’:’)_ with coconspirator B, and was a partner with coconspirator B in Computer

Training & 'Assoc:iates, Inc. (“CTA”). GNT and CTA were headguartered in the Chicago,
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Illinois metropolitan area. Both corripénies operated as éervice providers for E-Rate_ in
‘the state of Florida and elsewhere, and TYRONE D. PIPKIN, acted on the behalf of
himself, GNT, and CTA when providﬁng goods and ser\}icés under B-Rate. Both GNT
and CTA were dissplved Iin 2008.
| II. CHARGE
Between on or abbut June 1, 2001, and on or about_t September S_, 2005, inthe
Northern District .éf Floﬁda and elsewhere, the defendant, |
TYRONE D. PIPKIN,

and others did knowingly and willfully combine, conspire, confederate, and agree
together and with each o{her, fo comrmit offenses against the United States, to wit: 1o
corruptly give, offer, and agree to give anything of value to anjf person, with the intent to:
influence aﬁd reward a:n agént of an organization, Whiéh organization récei\(ed federal .
assistance in excess of $10,000 or more in a one-year period, in Connectipn with any
business, transaction, and series of transactions of such organization ‘inv&ving anything
of value of $5,000 o more,in violation of Tifle 18, United States Code, Section
6662, |

M. MANNER AND MEANS OF THE CONSPIRACY ,
1. It was part of the conspiracy that "I“YR.ONE D. PIPKIN and others

would and did corruptly give, and agree to give, to coconspirator A, checks and wire

transfers totaling approximately $79,382.
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2. It was further part of the conspiracy that coconspirator A would and did

accept checks and wire transfers totaling approximately §79,382 from TYRONE D,

PIPKIN and others.
3. It was further part of the cbnspiracy that coconspirator A would and did

provide influence and favorable treatment to TYRONE D. PIPKIN, coconspirator B,
" and their companies, GNT and CTA, in coﬁjﬁhction with awarding E-Rate work at
Blnovation'Schools and other Florida schools in exchange for the payments by TYRONE

D. PIPKIN and others.
4, Tt was further part of the conspiracy that coconspirator A did not disclose

to USAC her acceptance of approximately $79,382 in payments from. TYRONE D.
PIPKIN, and others, whose comjganies, GNT and CTA, were aWarded over $1.4 million
in E-Rate work at Innovation Schools and other schools located in the Northern Distﬁqt

of Florida and eléewheré.
IV. OVERT ACTS

In ﬁmheranqe of the conspiracy, and in order to effect the purposes and objects
&ereof, TYRONE D. PIPKIN and his coconspirators, comumitted various overt acts and
caused various overt acts to be committed in the Northem District of Florida and |

elsewhere, incluciing, but not limited to, the following:
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1. In or around mid 2001, coconspirator A introduced Innovation Schools to

-E~Rate and a:rranged to serve as its E-Rate consultant to oversee, manage, and handle aﬂ
matters relating to E-Rate it was implerhenting. As the E-Rate consultant, cbconspiratof
A was responsible for ﬁlling all appliéations and related forms with USAC on behalf of
Innovation Schools, assisting with vendor selections, and responding to rlequests for

documentation from USAC.
2. In or around early 2002, coconspirator A caused GNT to be selected as the

E-Rate service provider for Innovation -Schooisl without GNT participating in a
competitive bidding process held by Innovation Schools in violation of B-Rate rules.
During the relevé,nt period, coconspirator A also caused GN’f and CTA 1o be selected as
the E-Rate servicé providers at other schools in the state of Florida where she ‘serv‘ed as
the E-Rate consultant. The selection of GNT and CTA at those schools also. Violatea E-
Ra’.ze rules conceﬁnjng the competitive bidding process. '_ |

3. Onorabout January 8, 2002, coconépirator A caused Fundmg Application
Form 471 Number 2845 1810 be subrﬁitted to USAC on behalf of Inﬁovation Schools.
Said application requested funding for goods and services under the E-Rate er Funding

Year 2002-2003. Coconspirator A caused the application to be certified as being in

compliance with E-Rate rules and regulations.
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4, On or about January 3, 2003, coconspirator A caﬁsed Funding Application
. Form 471 Number 346243 to be submitted to USAC on behalf of Innovation Schools.

Said application requested funding for goods an'dl serv_iées under the E-Rate for Funding
Year 2003-2004. Coconspirator A caused the application to be certified as being in

compliance with E-Rate rules and regulations.
5. Onor about J anuary 7, 2003, coconspirator A caused Funding

Application Form 471 Number 348089 to be submitted to USAC on behalf of Innovation
Schools. Said application requested funding for goods and services under the E—Rate for
" Funding Year 2003-2004. Coconspirator A caused the application to be certified as being-

in 'compliance with E-Rate rules and regulations.

6. Qn or about January 7, 2003, the éonsi)irators caused $5,000 to be wired |
. from the checking account of TYRONE D. PiPKIN to coconspiratbr A.
7. On or about Japuary 21, 2003, the qonspiratoré ;Jaused $2,000.'to be Wired.
- from the checking account of TYRO&E D. PIPKIN to coconspirator A.
8. ~On or about February 5, 2003, coconspirator A céused Funding

Application Form 471 Number 377572 to be submitted to USAC on behalf of Innovation -

Schools. Said application requested funding for goods and services under the E-Rate for



-
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Funding Year 2003-2004, Coconspiratér A caused the application to be certified as being

in compliance with E-Rate rules and regulations.

9. . Onor about February 27, 2003, the conspirators caused $1,500 to be wired
from the checking account of TYRONE D. PIPKIN to cocénspirator A,

10. On or about April 29, 2003, TYRONE D. PIPKIN caused USAC to issue |

| Check #130045495 made payable to GNT in the_ amount of $142,200, and did cause said

, check to be delivered to GNT.
11.  Onor about May 14, 2003, coconspirator A advised USAC that she was

the E-Rate consultant for Innovation Schools and other private schools in the state of

Florida, ‘and failed to disbiose that she was bein‘g paid as an agent of GNT a;.nd CTA.
| 12. Onor a’oéut August 5, 2003, the conspirators cause& $2,000 to I;e wired

from the checking account of TYRONE D. PIPKIN to chonsi}irator A

13, | On or about Noveﬁzber 28, 2003, TYRONE D. PIPKIN caused CTA
to issue a $5,000 check, si_ghed by TYRONE D PiPKIN,.to coconspirator A.

14. Onor gbout January.7, 2004, TYRONE D. PIPKIN caused CTA 1o issue
a $6,000 check, signea by. TYRONE D. PIPKIN, to coconspirator A.

15. On or about April 13, 2004, TYRONE D. PIPKIN caused CTA. to issue

a §5,000 check, signed by TYRONE D. PIPKIN, to coconspirator A.

8-
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16. On or about July ‘8,.2004, TﬁONE D. PIPKIN caused CTA to issue a
$5,000 check, signed by TYRbNE D. PIPKIN, to coconspirator A.
17. On or about August 19, 2004, TYRONE D. PIPKIN caused USAC to
wire $71,500 in E-Rate funds to GNT’s bank. account in Ch};;:ago, linois.
18, On or about Sép.mmber 3, 2‘00_4, TfII{ONE D. PIPKIN caused GN’II‘ to.
issuc a $15,000 check, signed by TYRONE D. PIPKIN, to coconspirator A.
18 | On or about chober 14, 2004, the cnnépirators caused $12,450 to be
Wired from GNT’S checking account to coconspiré.tof A.
20. On or about becemﬁer 9’. 2004, 'I‘YRONE D. PIPKIN causea USAC 1o
wire $16,5 OO‘ in E-Rate funds to GNT’s bank account in Chi'cago, Hlinois;
21. On or about'}“ anuary 3, 2005., TYRONE D. PIPKIN caused USAC to wire
$15,750 in E-Rate %ds to GNT’s bank account in cméago, Tllinois. |
| 22, _On or about Ff;bmary é, 2005, ‘coconspirat(-)r _AJcausec.i Funding
Appllication Form _4’71 Numbers 460328. and 460331 to be su-brﬁiﬁecil to USAC on behalf
of Innovation Schools.
23. ‘ Onl%)r about Fébrua:ry 15, 2505, éoconépirator A causeci Funding
Application Form 471 NumBer 473979 to be submiﬁed to USAC on behalf of Innovation

Schools.
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24, On 01; about ngzuary 22, 2A005, the conspirators caused $5,400 to be wired
from‘GNT’s chlecldﬁg account to coconspirator A.

25. On or about April 1, 2005, TYRONE D. PIPKIN caused USA_é o wire
$49,185 in E-Rate funds to GNT’s bank account‘in Chicago, Iilinois‘ |

26. On or about April 6, 2005, TYRONE D. PIPKIN caused GNT to issue a
$13,032 check, Signed‘ by TYRONE D, PIPKIN, to. coconspirator A.

27.  Onor about August 4, 2005, codonspﬁator B caused BankOne Official
Check Number 9195 553?1 in the amount $2,0600 to be ﬁade payable to cc;conspira‘cor A.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371. |

COUNT TWO

The .allegatibns in Count One of this Indictment. are re-alleged and incorporated

_herein.

On or about April 6, 2(}05', _in the Northem Disirict of Florida and élsewhere, the

. defendant,

TYRONE D. PIPKIN,

did corruptly give, offer, and agree to give anything of value to any person, with intent to
influence and reward an agent of an organization, which organization received fedetal
assistance in excess of $10,000 in a one-year period, in connection with any business,

transaction, and series of transactions of such organization involving anything of value of

-10-
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$5,000 or mote, to wit: TYRONE D. PIPKIN corruptly géve $13,032 to coconspirator
A, With the intent to influence and reward coconspirator A, an agent of Innovation
Schools, so that TYRONE D. PIPKIN, coconspirator B, and their companies, GNT and

CTA, could be rewarded in connection with the E-Rate at Innovation Schools.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 666(&)(2}.

COUNT THREE

‘ The ailegatli-onsl in Count Oﬁe of this Indictment are re-alleged and -incoxporated
herein, o

-On or about August 4, 2005, m the Northern District of Florida and ;iséwhere,
the defendant, | |

TYRONE D. PIPKIN,

| corruptly aidéd, abetted, counseled, indnced and procured the corrupt giviné, offering,
and agrgemént- to give anyﬂung of value to any person, with in;ent to influence and
reward an agent of an 6rgamzaﬁoh, which organization received federal assistance in
excess of $10,000 in a one-year period, in connection with any business, transaction, and |
series of transactions of such organization involving anﬁhing of value of $5,000 or more,
o ‘Wi‘t: TYRONE D. PIPKIN corruptly aided, abetted, counseléd, induced and procured
the corrupt giving of $2,000 to coconspira}tor A, with the in‘;ént to influence and Ireward

coconspirator A, an agent of Innovation Schools, so that TYRONE D. PIPKIN,

“11-
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coconspirator B, and their companies, GNT and CTA, could be rewarded in connection

with the EuRéte at Innovation Schools.

In vipla’tion of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 666(2)(2) and 2(a).
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